
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Crime & Disorder Scrutiny 
Committee

Members of the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are 
summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the  on Thursday, 7 October 2021 at 7.30 pm when 
the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted.

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the Agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public 

5. Activity of the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel (GVP) (Community Safety 
Partnership Sub-Group) 

(Pages 9 - 26)

6. Town Centre Policing Update Verbal Update

7. E-Scooters Update Verbal Update

8. Topic Review Update (Pages 27 - 34)

9. Minutes of the latest publication of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime 
Panel 

(Pages 35 - 42)



10.Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter or urgency. 

11.Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. Part B Items 
likely to be considered in private. 

Part B 

Items likely to be considered in private 

None 

Members

Cllr Baljit Hayre (Chair)
Cllr Brian Sangha (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Derek Ashenden
Helen Ashenden
Ejaz Aslam
John Caller
Dakota Dibben
Aaron Elliott
Brian Francis
Gary Harding
Elizabeth Mulheran
Leslie Pearton
Tony Rana
Frank Wardle

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday, 21 April 2021 7.30 pm

Present:

Cllr Baljit Hayre (Chair)
Cllr Christina Rolles (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Derek Ashenden
Helen Ashenden
Ejaz Aslam
Dakota Dibben
Aaron Elliott
Brian Francis
Gary Harding
Emma Morley 
Leslie Pearton 
Lauren Sullivan
Tony Rana
Frank Wardle

Please note: Cllr Brian Sangha was also in attendance. 

Simon Hookway Assistant Director (Communities)
Kath Donald Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit)
Sean Steer Operational Manager (Community Safety Unit)
James Beautridge Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police
Ben Clarke Committee Services Officer (Minutes)

9. Apologies for Absence 

There were no apologies for absence.

10. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 21 January 2021 were signed by the Chair.

11. Declarations of Interest 

Cllr Leslie Pearton declared an interest as his daughter worked for Kent Police as a Warden 
in Rochester. 

12. Gravesham CSP Draft Community Safety Strategy 

The Committee were provided with the draft Community Safety Strategy 2021-24 that had 
been prepared by the Council’s Community Safety Unit (CSU) on behalf of the newly 
established Gravesham Community Safety Partnership (CSP). The Strategy provided the 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee 21.04.2021

2

foundation for the direction of multi-agency community safety activity in the Borough over the 
next three years. 

The Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit) guided Members through the detailed 
report and highlighted key points from the Community Safety Strategy. 

Members noted that the following had been identified as the five key priorities for the 
Strategy; a detailed rationale for each priority was listed in the report: 

 Violent crime including domestic abuse
 Persistent anti-social behaviour and environmental crime
 Preventing offending and reducing re-offending
 Protecting vulnerable people and strengthening communities
 Communication and engagement

The Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit) advised Members that as it was no longer a 
joint Strategy and Gravesham’s partner representatives had total control, the fifth priority 
‘Communication and Engagement’ was able to be added in. The Council felt strongly about 
the priority as it would improve communication between Gravesham’s partners and the 
public, improve communicating the effect on the Borough that the Partnership’ work has  
achieved so far, further report Gravesham’s accomplishments and provide increased 
methods of listening to what the public wanted. 

The Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit) was waiting to hear final feedback from the 
other partners to see what they wanted included in the Strategy and following that the 
Community Safety web pages would be updated as they had expired since the end of the 
previous partnership. 

The findings of the public consultation are also summarised in the Strategy and would be 
included in the new Community Safety web pages.

Following questions and comments from Members, the Strategic Manager (Community 
Safety Unit) explained that: 

 The Council had information readily available on the website informing the public 
where/how to report crime and ASB; if it was low level anti-social behaviour or a 
historical crime then the public are  encouraged to report it to 101. However, if it was 
a serious crime or an incident occurring presently with an immediate  risk of harm 
then the public are  encouraged to call 999. If a member of the public is concerned 
about reprisals, then they could contact Crime Stoppers and report the crime 
completely anonymously 

 At Gravesham Council events, there was usually a CSU stall and the safety shop 
usually runs for a week in December where information is provided to the public on 
how to report various different types of crimes and crime prevention advice is offered 

 The CSU team were very conscious of the fact that a  percentage of domestic abuse 
victims were men, and it was recognised that there was likely a lot of underreporting 
of domestic abuse especially from men due to the stigma around it. Much of the work 
being undertaken by the CSU team was around encouraging domestic abuse victims 
to come froward and seek help; the point was stressed to Members that the CSU did 
not differentiate based on gender, any and all victims would receive as much help as 
they needed to escape domestic abuse and receive due care. The CSU team would 

Page 4



Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee 21.04.2021

3

continue to raise awareness of domestic abuse so that not only could it be prevented 
but staff could also recognise the signs of someone being abused 

 Events purely for male victims had been run in the past but the Strategic Manager 
(Community Safety Unit) agreed to look into creating more promotional work to 
encourage men to come forward 

 The Operational Manager (Community Safety Unit) and the Strategic Manager 
(Community Safety Unit) recently met with Natalie Brown who was the lead officer for 
Safeguarding and discussed the rollout of the Safeguarding training programme for 
Members and staff. She was working on it and had completely reviewed and revised 
the previous Safeguarding Policy that was in place; the training programme is being 
amended to include training on how to spot the signs of safeguarding issues as well 
as possible cases of modern slavery. It was important that Members and staff were 
provided with the training as soon as possible and work was underway to get it into 
the Member training schedule for 2021-22 

 The Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit) attended the first meeting of a new 
Domestic Abuse Partnership Board set up by KCC a few weeks ago and was also 
asked to attend a media group meeting as she raised the issues disabled people 
faced and the need for engagement and effective communication with the disabled 
population. As Cllr Harding had raised the points regarding disabled victims, the 
Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit) agreed to send him the minutes of that 
Board meeting. The minutes would also reflect the discussions held on the pieces of 
work the Board wanted to do with local charities; the aim was to create a calendar of 
friendly events throughout the year in order to raise awareness. Events such as 
Disability Awareness week would also be opportunities for communities to be 
reached out to that found it more difficult to access services 

The Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police agreed with the points made regarding reporting 
crime and expanded further; the public should call 999 if there was imminent danger to 
themselves or someone else, call 101 for general crime reporting, report it online through the 
Police website or contact a force operator through the web live chat where they would 
provide assistance and transfer people to the correct department. 

With regards to ensuring the safety of callers/witnesses to crimes, the Acting CSU Inspector, 
Kent Police advised that there were several different things the Police could do such as the 
most extreme like putting a witness into a witness protection programme. On the lower end 
of the scale, CCTV cameras could be installed on a property as well as alarms and patrols 
by uniformed officers. The Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police advised that it was normal for 
there to be a level of fear of reporting crimes, but the public were encouraged to report 
anything they thought could be of interest even if they did it completely anonymously as the 
smallest bit of information could be crucial in some cases. 

The Chair thanked the Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit) for the comprehensive 
summary of the report and the hard work that had gone into making the Strategy. 

13. Nuisance Vehicles - E-scooter, quad-bikes/mini-motos and irresponsible 
cycling 

The Chair advised that Cllr Sangha and Cllr Aslam had requested the item to be brought to 
the Committee; the Chair had agreed that Cllr Sangha would be invited to address the 
Committee following the Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police. 

Page 5



Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee 21.04.2021

4

The Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police addressed the Committee and gave a detailed 
presentation on nuisance caused by E-Scooters, what the Police were doing to combat the 
issue and several cases where a successful prosecution had been made. Some of the key 
points made to Members were: 

 E-Scooters were classified as vehicles and in order to drive them on the road, the 
user needed a driver’s licence, MOT, and insurance; if they did not have those 
things, they were only permitted to drive them on private land. No insurers would 
insure a scooter and there were currently only a few areas in London and Canterbury 
where E-Scooters schemes were being trialled by the local authorities 

 There were a variety of different users; there were the youths that were riding them 
dangerously but there were also commuters who used them to be greener and some 
found them convenient instead of using a car to get to work or the train station. There 
was a lack of public awareness that E-Scooters were illegal to use on the road and 
that is why officers initial approach was to inform users when they were stopped the 
first time with a talk and a leaflet. 

 Kent Police had an officer in place that was dedicated to deal with the problem of E-
Scooters, and they had been working on a detailed plan to tackle the issue; that 
detailed plan would be shared with the CSU team once it was completed 

 A database had been created which was in its infant stages but could be accessed 
by all North Kent Police Officers; every time an E-Scooter driver was stopped their 
details would be inputted into the system and given their first warnings. If they were 
stopped a second time, then they would receive a section 59 warning and a third stop 
would mean that their E-Scooter was seized under Section 59. The officers could 
also summon the drivers to court for having no insurance; the leaflet that was being 
used had been forwarded to the CSU team and would be included in the next edition 
of the ‘Your Borough’ magazine 

 Youths on the E-Scooters were difficult to catch; they had no recognisable plates and 
would often mount the kerb or drive down alleys to escape officers. The E-Scooters 
could reach speeds of 20-30 mph and officers were not able to pursue them in a 
tactical pursuit using Police vehicles as it would be too dangerous 

 It was likely that one day more schemes would be rolled out to other areas trialling 
the E-Scooters with proper checks as it was greener and would remove a number of 
vehicles off the road but currently the Police were treating it as the illegal issue it was 

The Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police gave a brief summary to the Committee on Kent 
Police’s plans to deal with off-road motorcycles: 

 There was a rural team in place which consisted of two PCSO’s and another officer 
was returning to the team specifically to deal with anti-social behaviour in the rural 
areas of North Kent. A sergeant from the Maidstone Rural Task Force had also 
agreed to provide assistance to the rural team in the summer as the special 
constable embargo during Covid had been lifted  

 The Specials Inspector had advised the Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police that there 
were fourteen Special officers who were freshly trained and ready to be made 
available which would greatly assist the rural team in the summer 

 Community Protection Orders had been looked into for the landowners that were not 
adequately protecting their land and relying too much on the Police 

 Operation Gurkha is targeting nuisance motorbikes and anti-social behaviour will be 
run every two weeks to keep the pressure on and force the motorbike users to move 
on from the affected areas or stop entirely. The community would be engaged with 

Page 6



Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee 21.04.2021

5

better, mobile numbers for officers working in the area had been given to Parish 
Councils so that they could report any crimes directly which meant a much faster 
response time 

 Footfall had skyrocketed in the Town Centre since restrictions had been lifted but that 
also meant cases of theft had also risen although there hadn’t been too much trouble 
from the pubs reopening. The team were constantly aware of the announcements 
made by the Prime Minister and were adapting all the time; resources and measures 
were being moved into place in light of the Government’s Roadmap. For example, if 
pubs were breaking the rules, then Kent Police would look to get publicans licences 
revoked and drug dogs and the British Transport Police would be stationed at the 
train station to deter county lines dug dealing 

The Chair thanked the officer for his detailed presentation and was encouraged to hear the 
fourteen officers that would be made available to assist the Rural Policing Team. 

Cllr Sangha addressed the Committee and outlined his reasons for being against the E-
Scooters and gave numerous examples of the nuisances they caused in his ward and the 
wider Borough: 

 Cllr Sangha explained the risks the E-Scooters caused to the general public as well 
as to the drivers and passengers themselves; Cllr Sangha cited a number of 
occasions where he had seen drivers with too many passengers, some as young as 
babies, no safety equipment or who were heavily overloaded and had the potential to 
cause major accidents on the pavements/roads 

 They posed a risk to the public and Cllr Sangha had received many complaints from 
residents in his ward concerned about users driving them through pedestrianised 
zones at fast speeds or driving dangerously doing wheelies etc 

 A Strategy needed to be created that focused on education, advice, and enforcement 
with actual targets to reach in order to stop youths driving dangerous and raising 
awareness of the illegality of E-Scooters 

Cllr Sullivan asked to meet with the Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police outside of the 
meeting to discuss community policing and how it could benefit her ward. 

The Committee echoed the comments around engaging with the urban and rural 
communities equally and raising awareness as well as sharing cases where nuisance bikers 
had affected their wards. 

In response to a Members question, the Chair welcomed that the raising awareness leaflet 
would be included in the ‘Your Borough’ magazine. 

Cllr Rana asked that his thanks be noted for the PCSO’s in Whitehill and Singlewell as they 
had cracked down on petty theft and crime leading to the crime rate dropping in the area. 

The Chair queried if there was any way of using a DNA spray on stopped scooters which 
could be used to identify them in later stops. 

The Acting CSU Inspector, Kent Police explained that he wasn’t aware of any such spray 
and advised that the stop was always based on the driver rather than the vehicle. 

Page 7



Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee 21.04.2021

6

14. Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel - Minutes of the meeting held     
8 December 2020 

The Committee were presented with the minutes of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime 
Panel meeting held on 08 December 2020. 

The Committee discussed and noted the minutes. 

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at Time Not Specified

Page 8



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee

Date: 7 October 2021

Reporting officer: Community Safety Operations Manager 

Subject: Gravesham Vulnerability Panel

Purpose and summary of report: 
To provide the Committee with an overview of the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel meeting 
and provide Case Studies.

Recommendations:
1. Note and comment on the content of the report and offer recommendations as 

appropriate.

1. Background

1.1 Local Authorities share a statutory responsibility with NHS England and Clinical 
Commissioning Groups for safeguarding and to promote the welfare of local 
people.

1.2 Locally a Gravesham Vulnerability Panel has been established through the 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP).  The Panel meets on a monthly basis and is 
chaired by Kent Police (usually the CSU Inspector or Sergeant) and is 
administered by the Community Safety Unit.

1.3 The Panel is a multi-agency group and comprises representatives from a very wide 
range of statutory and voluntary sector organisations.   Organisations invited 
include; Kent Police Community Safety Unit  Inspector, Sergeant, PCSOs; Modern 
Slavery & Human Trafficking; Probation Service; GBC- CSU, Housing ASB, 
Housing Officer, Housing Options, Environmental Protection; The Gr@nd; Kent 
Fire & Rescue Services;  DWP; KCC Safeguarding adults and children; Mental 
Health, Social Services, Learning Disability, Kent County Council Warden Service, 
NHS – Safeguarding, Darent Valley Hospital Safeguarding, Victim Support, HO 
Immigration Service,  CGL (Change Grow Live), Housing Associations (when 
referrals relate to tenants), Sanctuary, Gravesham Methodist Church Daytime Hub, 
Porchlight, North Kent Mind, G-Safe, Dementia Support Group, Look Ahead, 
House of Mercy (supported accommodation).

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



2

1.4 In cases where the usual processes have been followed regarding potentially 
vulnerable adults (reporting to Social Services) but concerns remain, a referral can 
be made to the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel.

1.5 The Terms of Reference for the Panel area attached as Appendix 2.  These are a 
refresh to be consulted on at next Community Safety Partnership Meeting.

1.6 Referrals to the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel are made by various agencies.   
Any officer or Member making the referral or their substitute is expected to attend 
the Panel meeting to report on the referral, to be available to provide further details 
if the Panel members have any questions and to explain their concerns.  The 
Panel will then have an input from all relevant agencies that may already be aware 
of the individual concerned or who are able to provide support or assistance so 
that a tailored plan of action is put in place for that individual.   A copy of the 
Referral Form is provided at Appendix 3.

1.7 Rough sleepers are initially heard under the Rough Sleeper Initiative Meeting, 
however they can be referred on to the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel when 
Safeguarding concerns arise.  

1.8 Agency attendance numbers range from 15 to 30 depending on referrals/cases.

1.9 The number of referrals to the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel made in 2020/21 
was 32 and to date from April 2021 it stands at 18.

1.10 All Gravesham Borough Council staff have been provided with a briefing note on 
safeguarding and on referring to the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel.

2. Case Studies (anonymised) 

Case Study 1

2.1 Background:  A vulnerable adult with escalating health and safety issues.  Lives in 
private rented HMO, being harassed and sent a letter of eviction during covid 
restrictions.  Informed can now stay having agreed an increase in rent charges; 
property is occupied by 8/9 males with shared facilities; has lots of extension leads 
with devices attached i.e. microwave, lamps, TV etc. in room, has recently tripped 
having hot water from kettle causing injury, smokes in room and has a small cat.   
Drunken males overheard discussing hiring prostitutes, another occupant seen 
getting something from a car that pulled up and seemed unhappy at being seen.  
Client felt unable to stay in room and went to stay with a friend.  Cannot use 
kitchen downstairs as tenants use property and take food, plumbing is poor and 
door locks insecure.  Has high physical-mobility pain and some mental health 
support needs for depression and anxiety; suffers learning difficulty and struggles 
with IT; uses cannabis for pain relief and does not want to engage with services for 
this; when drinking alcohol can become promiscuous and vulnerable; uses a 
mobility scooter.  Is in receipt of full DWP benefits, has savings and income 
monthly.  A risk from others due to substance use and poor home security 
measures.   Re-engaged this week for support for cannabis use and has not 
engaged with appointments.  Referred to Hospital for psychiatric assessment; 
referred for counselling with Insight and short term counselling via GP.  Not open 
to KCC Mental Health Team.

2.2 Time on Gravesham Vulnerability Panel: 11 months

Page 10



3

2.3 Action/Intervention:  Has good support from family members.  Homeless 
application on grounds of at risk due to feeling unsafe and threats received 
submitted for Housing Need.      Referred to Change, Grow Live (CGL) and Look 
Ahead.  Did not engage with CGL during initial talks around cannabis use; or 
respond to further calls to confirm if support was wanted.  During initial 
conversation stated cannabis use was for pain control; Referral closed to CGL and 
referred to GP to discuss pain relief.  Contact made with GP establishing health 
issues enabling a housing application banding review.  Checks made on legality of 
using property for multiple occupancy private rental use. Environmental Health 
Officer visited the property.   Property does not meet criteria for HMO and faulty 
window in bedroom has been repaired by landlord. Private Sector has visited the 
address and confirmed that this is an unlicensed HMO. Later the client resolved 
issues with Landlord but wanted to remain on Housing Register until a suitable 
property became available.  Landlord served with an Emergency Prohibition Order 
due to the amount of repairs required.  

2.4 Diagnosed with hearing impairment.  Not responding to calls from Housing Option 
Team around her on-line bidding; auto-bidding to be set up for her.   Look Ahead 
offered assistance with supported accommodation and assessment carried out.  
Live Well Kent agency is working with client.  Open to CGL for cannabis use 
however later claims is using diazepam and suicidal.  Occupational Therapist to 
provide home support.   Hospital attendance due to overdose.

2.5 Care Needs assessment completed.  Also referred to MIND for her to participate in 
activities.  Engagement with Look Ahead going well and not buying street 
medication such as diazepam. Continues to smoke cannabis on a regular basis 
and wants to continue doing this. Continuing to take prescribed medication and 
engaging well with CGL.   Alternatives sought for cannabis use as pain relief.  
Being supported twice weekly at home.  Further hospital appointments confirmed 
for injuries.  

2.6 Look Ahead lead agency and supporting client.   Client continues to buy diazepam 
off the street to help with pain levels and reported feeling unsafe at home; the 
property is in poor condition.   Receiving daily care via services.  Several health 
issues and medication changes during support.    Later client staying with parent 
as feeling suicidal.   Additional concerns for health of landlord.     

2.7 Alternative accommodation sought as affecting health.  Mental Health Assessment, 
psychological assessment and financial assessments completed.  Many support 
packages offered for financial help, home help, substance use, pain relief, 
counselling and mental health.  

2.8 Outcome:  Although the individual’s issues have been addressed and resolved the 
case was kept open for a further month for safeguarding reasons.  The client was 
successfully rehoused and able to take the pet.  They are settling in well and 
managing day to day tasks and continue to engage with services.    Many 
complexities in this case meant referrals and actions had to be duplicated with 
constant engagement to ensure the correct support was provided.

Case Study 2

2.9 Background: Client was served a Notice of Seeking Possession.  Client is under 
Community Mental Health Team and diagnosed with Schizophrenia.  Has met with 
a solicitor that has agreed to represent them under Legal Aid.  Client has stated 
they do not want help for drug and alcohol dependency and believes that street 
drugs are beneficial.    Concerns that due to a diagnosis of Schizophrenia and a 

Page 11



4

drug and alcohol dependency that they may be being taken advantage of by others 
or groups looking to exploit them with potential drug dealing from the address.  
Often seen in public ‘performing’ at the request of people (singing and dancing) 
and make fun of them.  Risk of Homelessness, self-neglect and exploitation. 

2.10 Time on Gravesham Vulnerability Panel: 6 Months.

2.11 Action/Intervention:  Referrer linking in to discuss Notice of Seeking Possession.   
Kent Adult Safeguarding Alert Form completed.   Mental health Team Referral 
completed. Assessment completed and client has capacity to make decisions.  
Open to KCC Social Care Team and a care needs and capacity assessment 
conducted at property.         

2.12 Community Behaviour Order served for begging.  The gas supply has been 
disconnected with drug and alcohol issues reported.     Client reporting burglary to 
property on several occasions.   

2.13 Local residents are reporting disturbances at property including allowing youths 
into the block; verbal abuse to local shop staff and threat to PCSO also noted.  
Home visits made by Police and ASB Officer.   All reported crimes investigated and 
CCTV checked in area.    

2.14 Has engaged with Mental Health Team and attending home for depot injection.  
Housing assessment completed following several missed appointments.

2.15 Outcome:  Due to having capacity to make decisions, all crimes investigated, 
support in place, client engaging in anti-social behaviour the Gravesham 
Vulnerability Panel case was closed.   Further actions to be taken by the Housing 
provider and support via Mental Health Team where appropriate.

Case Study 3

2.16 Background:  Referral made after concerns for female client are increasing after a 
series of previous hospital admissions in relation to alcohol misuse and they have 
poor physical health due to this.  Client continues to drink alcohol daily and is not 
engaging with services. Client is living with her mother who is worried that she may 
be using drugs.  Mother reports that client is not eating and is feeling depressed. 
Client has been warned by Doctors of the consequences should they continue to 
consume alcohol.  Vulnerable as not engaging with substance misuse services and 
not meeting basic needs.  Physical health will continue to deteriorate if they do not 
stop drinking.  Detox and rehab was discussed and agreed however they then 
disengaged and services are currently unable to re-engage her.  Client is 
vulnerable and at risk from associates when not at her Mother’s address.  Has only 
30% liver function.  

2.17 Health issues include self-neglect and medicated for heart, kidney, and liver 
cirrhosis. There is a concern around prostituting at a guest house; is also very 
unwell and refusing help.   Concerns were raised of being abused by males when 
drunk and being unaware of abuse and also gives money away. When sleeping in 
a tent she was possibly exploited by males they surround themselves with for 
protection.

2.18 Months on Gravesham Vulnerability Panel:  8 months. 

2.19 Action/Intervention:  Agency engagement included a KCC Safeguarding Plan, 
gathering information on medication taken, hospital engagement checks made, all 

Page 12



5

agencies to report sighting including Police and Safer Place Officers, Hospital in-
care team engaging at home address, seen by psychiatrist to assess mental 
health, has been deemed vulnerable but not lacking capacity to make own 
decisions.  She is being supported by a number of agencies including Police 
Vulnerable Intervention Officer, Change Grow Live (CGL), Sanctuary, Housing 
Needs. 

2.20 Later she was evicted from temporary Housing due to allowing other persons to 
access the property.  A safeguarding support plan was put in place.  She has been 
using several places to stay including a parents’ address, a tent and a guest 
house.  Several concerns regarding bruising to arm and visit to A&E.  Sporadic 
agreements to engage and continues to decline detox.  Medical update provided 
by GP.  Had been seen drinking from open 2 litre bottle of cider.   Joint visits made 
by Adult Social Services and CGL.  Police continue to provide information and 
advice.  Further attendance to Darent Valley Hospital and safeguarding referral 
made due to injuries.  Concerns still raised about drug and alcohol use.   All 
agencies continue to engage and offer support.  

2.21 Attended hospital with a chest infection and admitted to the respiratory ward, 
discharged with no address noted on discharge papers.  Not engaging with 
Change Grow Live and has had no contact with Sanctuary or Porchlight.  It was 
agreed to keep her case open whilst concerns remain around lifestyle choices.   
Was spending more time at parents’ home. 

2.22 Outcome:  Despite all agencies constant engagement with this individual and due 
to the nature of illness they passed away later the following month.  

3. BACKGROUND PAPERS

3.1 There are no background papers pertaining to this report.

Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should in the first place, be directed to 
Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary arrangements.

Page 13



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal No

Finance and Value 
for Money 

None to Report

Risk Assessment Not Applicable

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
     

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
     

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan The GVP makes a direct contribution to addressing a significant number of the 
commitments contained within the new Corporate Plan 2019-23 in supporting and 
safeguarding vulnerable residents.

Climate Change None

Crime and Disorder Crime and Disorder s.17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

Digital and website 
implications

None

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

Community Safety Strategy Priority 4: Protecting Vulnerable People and 
Strengthening Communities reflected in the Strategy.

Page 14

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


7

Gravesham Borough Council Safeguarding Policy.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Gravesham Vulnerability Panel
Terms of Reference

1. Purpose and Scope

1.1 The purpose of this Group is to bring together partner agencies (from the statutory, 
voluntary and community sector) to work collaboratively in providing a coordinated 
response to particular areas of vulnerability where an individual may be at risk. 

1.2 The Gravesham Vulnerability Panel will provide a partnership response to areas of 
vulnerability and associated crime and its impact on local communities. The areas of focus have 
been informed by Kent Police’s Control Strategy 2020/21 (Appended).  Within this document, 
all areas of focus will be referred to as areas of vulnerability.

These areas will include 

• Vulnerable Adults;
• Exploitation;
• Serious Violence;
• High Harm Crime;
• Abuse.

2. Objectives
 

2.1 The Gravesham Vulnerability Panel will aim to:

• Provide an effective local response to issues related to areas of vulnerability in Gravesham;
• Develop and implement multi-agency plans, specifically tailored to support and meet the needs 

of individuals, victims and communities affected by areas of vulnerability;
• Raise awareness, amongst partner agencies and within local neighbourhoods, of the areas of 

vulnerability and the impact on individuals and communities;
• Carry out joint activity to develop techniques and identify interventions to deter people from 

being drawn into serious and organised criminality.

3. Roles and Responsibilities

3.1 Agency representatives attending the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel will have responsibility 
for ensuring that information/intelligence held on individuals believed to be vulnerable or 
associated with areas of vulnerability, premises/properties being used by them and 
communities affected is shared with the Panel.

Members will be responsible for leading on agreed actions relevant to their agency/service area 
to support the Panel in meeting its objectives.  Members should endeavour to attend each 
meeting of the Panel where their attendance is specifically requested; in the event that they 
are unable to attend, they must send a substitute or provide a written update to the 
coordinating officer.

It is envisaged that there will be a ‘core membership’ of key partner agency representatives 
that will attend each meeting whilst representatives from a broader range of 

Page 17



agencies/organisations may be invited to attend due to the nature of the activity or issue and 
their relevant expertise and experience.

4 Information-sharing and Confidentiality  

4.1 Confident and effective information exchange is vital to multi-agency working in any sphere. 
The Gravesham Vulnerability Panel will comply with the Data Protection Act 2018. Partners 
should exchange information, where this is relevant and necessary, for any legitimate activity 
permitted with the specific objective of reducing crime and disorder in their area. 
All members of the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel will at times be privy to sensitive and 
confidential information and/or material. It is imperative that this is not disseminated further 
unless necessary in the interests of an on-going criminal investigation.   All members will be 
required to sign an attendance sheet containing a disclaimer in respect of information sharing.

4.2 Frequency of Meetings
The Gravesham Vulnerability Panel will meet on a monthly basis and meetings will be held at 
the Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend DA12 1AU or via Teams Meetings.

There may be occasion to call an extraordinary meeting depending on intelligence received.  If           
such a need arises, all relevant partners will be invited with as much notice and possible and all 
should endeavour to attend or provide a fully briefed substitute to attend on their behalf. The 
Panel will comprise of representatives of the following agencies (to form the ‘core 
membership’) but membership will be open to representatives from any statutory, voluntary 
or community organisation that wishes to join to contribute to the efforts of the Panel.  

Core Membership

 Gravesham Borough Council (Community Safety Unit Operations Manager/Strategic 
Manager (and ASB Officers/Lead Safeguarding Officer when appropriate), Housing Services,  
Environmental Health and other departments as required);

 Kent Police (local Community Safety Unit/local PCSO);
 Kent County Council (Social Services when appropriate);

 Kent Fire and Rescue Service

4.3 Each organisation will be represented by at least one staff member (in the case of the 
Council, each Department will be represented).  In cases where a representative is unable to 
attend, they should seek to nominate a deputy to represent the organisation in their place or 
provide a written update on any activity for which they have accepted lead responsibility.

4.4Individuals with specialist knowledge and/or experience may be invited to attend meetings 
without requiring a commitment of regular attendance.

5. Governance and Accountability

5.1 The Gravesham Vulnerability Panel will be an operational group of Gravesham’s Community 
Safety Partnership (CSP).  The CSP meets on a quarterly basis and a formal report of progress 
being made by this Group in addressing issues identified will be provided at each CSP meeting.  
The work of this Group will also significantly contribute to the Council’s Safeguarding Policy and 
broader Community Safety Strategy therefore, reports will also be provided at regular intervals 

Page 18



through quarterly corporate reporting processes and to relevant Council meetings e.g. 
Community and Leisure Cabinet Committee. 

5.2 The Group may agree to provide presentations and/or reports on its activity to other 
agencies, organisations and meetings as appropriate e.g. Gravesham’s Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Committee.

Gravesham Community Safety Unit
September 2021

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Kent Control Strategy 2020/21

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

GRAVESEND VULNERABILITY PANEL -  ADULT CLIENT INFORMATION FORM

PART A  –  AGENCIES WISHING TO MAKE A REFERRAL

Instructions
The Gravesend Vulnerability Panel referral form is used in assessing whether someone 
referred to the programme is appropriate. This will not be the only criterion used in 
determining service eligibility, and certain vulnerable groups of people will be given priority:

 The person experiences several problems at the same time (e.g. homelessness, 
mental ill health, substance misuse, offending, family breakdown)

 The person has ineffective contact with services (e.g. frequent attenders)
 The person lives a chaotic life

Once completed, please RETURN this referral form to: 
community.safetyunit@gravesham.gov.uk 

Details of person requesting support for the individual Date
Name Role
Agency/organisation Address

Contact number Contact email
Client information
Name 
DOB Nationality
Address (include 
postcode)
Contact numbers:
Please confirm that you have written consent from 
the individual

Yes/No

Please state your reasons for making this referral  and why additional support is needed

Please describe the issues and concerns that are currently present (e.g. homelessness, mental ill 
health, substance use, offending, family breakdown etc.)

Please outline any work that has been undertaken with the individual including any successes 

Please highlight any risks that you have identified 

Intentional self-harm

Page 23

mailto:community.safetyunit@gravesham.gov.uk


2

Unintentional self-harm

Risk to others

Risk from others

Any other risks identified? 

Individual views:  What is the individual hoping to achieve from this referral?

Best Agency to Lead the referral?

Which Agencies would be best placed to assist with the referral?

Additional information

Details of other agencies / practitioners involved with the individual:

Client Consent to Share Information

Practitioner 
Name Job role/ Team/ Organisation Contact details 

Page 24



3

I understand that the information gathered regarding myself is recorded and will be stored 
and used for the purpose of providing advice and support services for me, and for the 
evaluation of these services.

I agree to the sharing of information between the practitioners working with me in 
connection to this support.

Client Name:

Client Signature:

Date:

PART B – REQUEST FOR CLIENT INFORMATION

Instructions
A referral has been made to the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel in reference to the 
above client.  Please complete Part B of this form, identifying information known to 
you / your organisation in relation to this client.

Organisation
Name & Job Title / Rank
Contact Address / Details
Reference

Please describe the issues and concerns that are currently present (e.g. homelessness, mental ill 
health, substance use, offending, family breakdown etc.)

Please outline any work that has been undertaken with the individual including any successes 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee

Date: 7 October 2021

Reporting officer: Assistant Director (Communities)

Subject: Topic Reviews Update

Purpose and summary of report: 
To propose a way forward for the Topic Reviews asscociated with this Committee. 

Recommendations:
1. That the Committee confirms the chairing and membership of the two Topic Reviews 

and agrees to the timing for reporting of these as proposed in paragraph 1.2.3 of this 
report.

1. Topic Reviews 

1.1 Terms of reference for two topic reviews selected by the Committee - Knife and 
Violent Youth Crime and Town Centre Crime - were agreed by the Committee at 
its meeting in January 2020.  These area attached as Appendix 2.

1.2 With the onset of the Pandemic, both topic reviews were put on hold.  These can 
now go ahead and the Committee is asked to consider and confirm the following:

1.2.1 Chairing of the Topic Reviews.  These were to be chaired by Cllr Lauren 
Sullivan (Knife & Violent Youth Crime) and Cllr Baljit Hayre (Town Centre 
Crime).  Cllr Sullivan is no longer a member of this Committee.  The 
Committee is asked to confirm any changes.

1.2.2 Membership of the Topic Review groups.  Membership of the Topic 
Review groups is included in the terms of reference for these reviews and 
will need updating.

1.2.3 Timing & Resources.  The January 2020 meeting supported a staggering 
of work on these topics to avoid stretching officer and partner resources 
too thinly.  It is proposed that the Knife & Violent Youth Crime Topic 
Review report its findings to the next meeting of this Committee on 20 
January 2022 and that the Town Centre Topic Review reports to 
Committee at the subsequent meeting on 15 March 2022. 

Page 27 Agenda Item 8



2

1.3 Work commenced on the Knife and Violent Youth Crime topic review with a multi-
disciplinary meeting on knife and violent youth crime held on 6 March 2020.  This 
was with representatives from the Police, Schools, KCC, Voluntary Sector and 
GBC and demonstrated a commitment to work collaboratively on this issue.  A 
Youth Engagement Panel was also set up under the Community Safety 
Partnership and is picking up on actions to address youth crime.

1.4 The Committee agreed that the Town Centre Topic Review be deferred until the 
Knife and Violent Crime Topic Review had been progressed.  Over the last year, 
reports on Town Centre crime have been included on the agenda for this 
Committee. 

2. BACKGROUND PAPERS

2.1 Agenda and  minutes of Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee, 21 January 2020 - 
https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=355&MId=4268
&Ver=4

Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be directed to 
Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary arrangements.

Page 28

https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=355&MId=4268&Ver=4
https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=355&MId=4268&Ver=4


IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal No implications.

Finance and Value 
for Money 

No implications.

Risk Assessment Ongoing attention to these two important areas is important to improving public 
safety in the Borough.

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
     

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
     

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan Contribution to improving public safety linked to People and Place in the Council’s 
Corporate Plan.

Climate Change No direct implications.

Crime and Disorder The topic reviews complement the work that partners are undertaking to improve 
community safety and reduce crime and ASB.

Digital and website 
implications

No direct implications.

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

The topic reviews recognise the importance of safeguarding young people and 
wider safeguarding issues in respect of the Town Centre.

Page 29

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Sub-Committee 

Review of Knife and Violent Youth Crime - Terms of Reference, 21 January 2020

1. Membership of the sub-committee

1.1 The political representation on the sub-group will be as follows:

1.1.1 Cllr Lauren Sullivan (L)

1.1.2 Cllr Nirmal Khabra (L)

1.1.3 Cllr Gary Harding (C)

1.1.4 Cllr Derek Ashenden (C)

1.2 The sub-group will be supported in their activities by Committee Services staff.  

1.3 Additional support will be provided, specific to the review, as required from officers across 
the council, specifically the Community Safety Team, and where appropriate partners from 
the Community Safety Partnership.

2 Work plan of the sub-group

2.1 The sub-group will:

2.1.1 Define the aims and objectives of the review and confirm how it will be undertaken. 

2.1.2 Gather information from statistics, partners and specifically young people in respect 
of knife and violent youth crime locally and the work that is currently in hand to 
respond to any issues. 

2.1.3 Draft a series of recommendations for additional actions and initiatives, informed by 
best practice and strategies elsewhere to prevent and address knife and violent 
crime. 

2.1.4 Finalise a report for consideration by Cabinet and the Community Safety 
Partnership, which demonstrates what implementation of the recommendations 
can achieve.

2.2 As per the Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Annex 2.5 of the Constitution), the Committee will be 
informed of the response to any recommendations to Cabinet, at the next available meeting 
following the Cabinet discussion.

3 Timeframe for activities

3.1 An initial timeframe for completion of the topic review by March 2020 was agreed at the 
Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee on 10 October 2019 although Members of the 
Committee can keep this deadline under review, should it need to go beyond that date to 
ensure that the review is thorough and robust.

3.2 Once the review has been completed, an agenda item will be listed for the next available 
Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee to receive a report on actions completed, their 
outcomes and the status of actions in progress, in line with the council’s Constitution.

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Sub-Committee 

Review of Town Centre Crime - Terms of Reference, 21 January 2020

1. Membership of the sub-committee

1.1 The political representation on the sub-group will be as follows:

1.1.1 Cllr Baljit Hayre  (L)

1.1.2 Cllr Emma Morley (L)

1.1.3 Cllr Ejaz Aslam (C)

1.1.4 Cllr Frank Wardle (C)

1.2 The sub-group will be supported in their activities by Committee Services staff.

1.3 Additional support will be provided, specific to the review, as required from officers across 
the council, specifically the Community Safety Team, and where appropriate partners from 
the Community Safety Partnership.

2 Work plan of the sub-group

2.1 The sub-group will:

2.1.1 Define the aims and objectives of the review and confirm how it will be undertaken, 
e.g. the aim of ‘a safer, more vibrant and welcoming Town Centre’. 

2.1.2 Gather information from statistics, partners, Cabinet, etc. which conveys what is 
actually happening in the Town Centre, identifies the key concerns, affected groups 
and the work that is currently in hand to respond to the issues. 

2.1.3 Draft a series of recommendations for additional actions and initiatives, informed by 
best practice and benchmarking with other Town Centres. 

2.1.4 Finalise a report for consideration by Cabinet and the Community Safety 
Partnership, which illustrates what implementation of the recommendations can 
achieve.

2.2 As per the Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Annex 2.5 of the Constitution), the Committee will be 
informed of the response to any recommendations to Cabinet, at the next available meeting 
following the Cabinet discussion.

3 Timeframe for activities

3.1 An initial timeframe for commencement of the topic review in May 2020 for completion by 
March 2021 to be agreed at the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee on 21 January 2019 
although Members of the Committee can keep this deadline under review, should it need to 
go beyond that date to ensure that the review is thorough and robust.

3.2 Once the review has been completed, an agenda item will be listed for the next available 
Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee to receive a report on actions completed, their 
outcomes and the status of actions in progress, in line with the council’s Constitution.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel held in the 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 17 June 
2021. 
 
PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman), Mr Gurvinder Sandher (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr A Clark, Mr N J Collor, Ms S Hamilton, Cllr P Feacey, Cllr F Gooch, 
Cllr Mrs J Hollingsbee, Cllr S Mochrie-Cox, Cllr R Palmer, Cllr M Rhodes, 
Cllr H Tejan, Cllr R Wells, Cllr L Dyball, Cllr G Hackwell, Mrs E Bolton and 
Cllr J Burden 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mr M Scott (Kent Police and Crime Commissioner), Mr A Harper 
(PCC's Chief Executive) and Mr R Phillips (PCC's Chief Finance Officer) 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs A Taylor (Scrutiny Research Officer) and Mr M Dentten 
(Democratic Services Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
1. Election of Chair  
(Item 3) 
 

1. The Scrutiny Research Officer (KCC) asked for nominations for Chairman of 

the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel. 

 

2. Cllr Gooch proposed that Mr Hill be elected Chairman of the Kent and Medway 

Police and Crime Panel. This was seconded by Cllr Hollingsbee and no other 

nominations were received. 

RESOLVED that Mr M Hill be elected Chairman of the Kent and Medway Police and 
Crime Panel. 
 
2. Election of Vice-Chair  
(Item 4) 
 

1. The Chairman proposed that Mr Sandher be elected Vice-Chairman of the 

Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel. This was seconded by Cllr Wells 

and no other nominations were received. 

RESOLVED that Mr Sandher be elected Vice-Chairman of the Kent and Medway 
Police and Crime Panel. 
 
3. Declarations of Interests by Members in Items on the Agenda for this 
Meeting  
(Item 5) 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

Page 35 Agenda Item 9



 

4. Minutes of the Police and Crime Panel held on 4 February 2021  
(Item 6) 
 

1. Cllr Mochrie-Cox recommended an amendment to minute 370.14 as follows: 

“The proposed precept increase was agreed by majority vote.”  

 

2. The amendment was agreed without a vote. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2021, subject to the 
amendment of minute 370.14 to “The proposed precept increase was agreed by 
majority vote,” were a correct record and that they be signed by the Chairman. 
 
5. Complaints Process Report  
(Item B1) 
 

1. The Commissioner congratulated the Chairman and Vice Chairman on their 

re-election and paid tribute to the previous Members of the Panel.  

 

2. The Commissioner provided a detailed summary of the complaints process 

report and reminded Panel Members of the OPCC’s and Professional 

Standards Department’s (PSD) complaint responsibilities. Within the OPCC’s 

area of responsibility the Commissioner noted that there had been a significant 

increase in casework due to a widening of the complaint definition. He 

recognised the impact victim outcomes had on complaints and reassured the 

Panel that no individuals were treated differently as a result of the increase in 

complaints casework. The Commissioner added that an additional caseworker 

had been hired to deal with correspondence.  

 

3. In relation to accountability, the Commissioner confirmed that he and the 

OPCC met with the PSD regularly and received annual complaint reports. He 

reminded Panel Members that Adrian Harper, as the OPCC Monitoring Officer 

oversaw the operation of the complaints process. 

 

4. Members asked a range of questions in relation to the Complaints Process 

Report. Key issues raised by the Panel and responded to by the 

Commissioner included the following: 

 

a. A Member asked whether government had provided additional funding 

to support the expansion of the complaints process. The Commissioner 

confirmed that the OPCC budget had not increased and that there had 

been no further tax burden as a result of the change. He added that any 

increase in resource would be addressed in the 2022-23 budget. 

 

b. The Commissioner was asked whether the Black Lives Matter 

movement had a measurable impact on the volume of complaints over 

the previous year. He confirmed that whilst there had been no 

significant overall increase, a rise in stop and search complaints and 

complaints against the Chief Constable after he took the knee were 

noted. 

 

Page 36



 

c. A Member asked whether a filtration system had been used to eliminate 

vexatious or trivial complaints and for details on the investigation 

process. Mr Harper confirmed that each complaint was considered on 

its words alone and that no automatic filtration was used. He informed 

the Panel that during the pandemic the OPCC reviewed 10% of 

complaints against Kent Police. Mr Harper gave reassurance that 

investigations were carried out in a responsible and proportionate 

manner and followed a codified complaints procedure. The Panel were 

reminded that professional police complaints were still handled by the 

PSD. 

 

d. Following a question from a Member, the Commissioner reassured the 

Panel that the budget for the Police Officer uptake programme was 

ringfenced and that funds would not be diverted to support the police 

complaints process. 

 

e. The Chairman asked whether a levelling out of complaint numbers had 

been predicted. The Commissioner noted that future complaint trends 

would be difficult to predict, reassurance was given that the OPCC 

would provide complaints guidance to members of the public where 

necessary. 

 

f. Following a question from the Chairman, the Commissioner agreed to 

provide a report with an update on complaints, including the total 

number and trends, at the appropriate time. 

RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
6. Overview of the Commissioner's Forward Plan to 2024 - Verbal Update  
(Item B2) 
 

1. The Commissioner gave a verbal overview of his priorities for his term in 

office. He outlined his 7 key focuses for the following 12 to 18 months, which 

included: 

1. A new Police and Crime Plan 

2. Continuation of the Police Officer uplift programme 

3. Commissioning 

4. Tackling violence against women and girls 

5. Strategic relationships and partnerships 

6. Budgetary considerations  

7. Pandemic response and evaluation  

 

2. Members asked a range of questions in relation to the Commissioner's 

Forward Plan to 2024. Key issues raised by the Panel and responded to by 

the Commissioner included the following: 

 

a. An update on the police cadet programme was requested and an 

expansion of the programme to include an apprenticeship suggested by 

Panel Members. The Commissioner confirmed that all districts in Kent 

Page 37



 

would have a police cadet unit by the end of 2021 and recognised the 

challenges faced when finding appropriate, cost efficient venues.  

 

b. A Member suggested community events as an effective means of 

engaging with young people. They also recognised the need to interact 

positively with young people who were not members of community 

groups. The Commissioner agreed to increase engagement at 

community events where possible and mentioned the role the Schools 

Team played in connecting with young people not involved in 

community groups. 

 

c. The Chairman highlighted the importance of the Schools Team and 

urged that it be expanded to the greatest possible extent.  

 

d. A Member highlighted the importance of retaining the same Police 

Officers in communities to build robust relationships with residents and 

local organisations. The Commissioner recognised the importance of 

retention and outlined PCSO turnover rates. 

RESOLVED that the verbal update be noted. 
 
7. Mental Health Update - Verbal Update  
(Item B3) 
 

1. The Commissioner informed the Panel that he was stepping down as the 

Association for Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC) mental health lead 

in July. 

 

2. Section 136 detentions were addressed by the Commissioner. He confirmed 

that there had been an overall decrease in 2020, when compared to the 

previous year, with a further decrease in the first quarter of 2021. He noted 

that investment in a mandated officer advice line, in collaboration with Kent 

and Medway NHS and Social Care Partnership Trust (KMPT) had improved 

police responses to mental health issues. The positive impact of Kent’s 5 Safe 

Havens on mental health cases was recognised. He confirmed that 

information had been circulated to officers and staff which outlined the function 

and services provided by Safe Havens. 

 

3. The Commissioner confirmed that the Kent and Medway Mental Health Crisis 

Care Board, which replaced the Kent and Medway Mental Health Crisis Care 

Concordat, had continued to meet with an increased executive level 

representation and the Commissioner as its Chair.  

 

4. National mental health developments were addressed. The Commissioner 

highlighted the Mental Health Act reform white paper which had concluded its 

consultation. He informed the Panel that the results would be published in the 

summer, to be followed by the legislative agenda. The Commissioner 

confirmed that the APCC had a seat on the national Mental Health Crisis Care 

Concordat Board which directly influenced government mental health policy. 

 

Page 38



 

5. He confirmed that an APCC briefing titled ‘Mental Health & Covid19: Phase 

Two Report’ would be published in July 2021. 

 

6. The Commissioner offered to continue to provide verbal updates on local 

mental health matters, this was endorsed by the Panel. 

RESOLVED that the verbal update be noted. 
POST MEETING NOTE: The APCC Mental Health & Covid19: Phase Two Report is 
available at www.apccs.police.uk/media/6493/apcc-mh-inquiry-phase-two-report-
final.pdf.  
 
8. Schemes of Consent  
(Item C1) 
 
RESOLVED that the Schemes of Consent be endorsed. 
 
9. Athena Contract Extension  
(Item C2) 
 

1. In response to a question from a Member on the flexibility and functionality of 

the Athena management system, Mr Harper highlighted frontline functionality 

which included instant criminal record checking and recording. He further 

noted the system’s greater compatibility and efficiency in comparison to other 

options.  

RESOLVED that the Athena contract changes and extension be endorsed. 
 
10. South East & Eastern Region Police Insurance Consortium (SEERPIC) 
Section 22A Agreement  
(Item C3) 
 
RESOLVED that the SEERPIC Section 22A agreement be endorsed. 
 
11. Future work programme  
(Item D1) 
 

1. The Chairman invited panel members to submit issues for consideration to the 

Scrutiny Research Officer.  

 

2. The Commissioner offered to provide updates on the Police uplift programme 

and violence against women and girls strategy at a future meeting. 

RESOLVED that the work programme be noted. 
 
12. Questions to the Commissioner  
(Item E1) 
 
Question 1: 

In his role in holding the Chief Constable to account, could the PCC detail how 

Kent Police are tackling the issue of e-scooters that are proving to be a real 

problem in local towns and communities including how Kent Police are 

educating users on the responsibilities of both individuals and other public 

Page 39

http://www.apccs.police.uk/media/6493/apcc-mh-inquiry-phase-two-report-final.pdf
http://www.apccs.police.uk/media/6493/apcc-mh-inquiry-phase-two-report-final.pdf


 

sector including on the law on e-scooters including the ability and powers of 

enforcement and resourcing of this enforcement? 

(Cllr Shane Mochrie-Cox, Gravesham Borough Council) 

 

The Commissioner outlined the Police’s powers to issue fines, points and 

make seizures in severe instances. He confirmed that the issue had been 

raised with the Chief Constable. On the matter of legality, the Commissioner 

verified that use of e-scooters on public roads and paths in Kent remained 

illegal, unless as part of the 12-month Canterbury public e-scooter pilot. It was 

recognised that further government policy development and public education 

was required to improve safety. 

 

Question 2: 
Urban areas within this County are plagued with graffiti. This is criminal 

damage. Local authorities, businesses and public bodies are spending 

hundreds of thousands of pounds annually in clearing and attempting to 

combat this scourge. Stop and search figures for Kent Police for the first 

quarter this year indicate that some 3,813 stop and searches were carried out 

yet the proportion of those searches for items used in connection with criminal 

damage was just 0.1% representing just three searches of that total figure. 

Facts speak for themselves. Anecdotal evidence indicates that the few that are 

caught and arrested are not investigated thoroughly with few s18 PACE house 

searches for evidence of linked offences. They are rarely prosecuted. Will the 

Commissioner bring the seriousness of this matter to the attention of the Chief 

Constable in order to ensure that this blight on our County receives the 

attention that it merits and will he additionally seek to influence those within 

the criminal justice system to act accordingly in both decisions to prosecute 

and provide effective deterrents?  

(Cllr Ashley Clark, Canterbury City Council)  

 

Assurance was given by the Commissioner that the specific issue raised by 

the Panel Member had been passed to Kent Police. He further confirmed that 

the majority of stop and searches were based off of intelligence and related to 

drugs, theft or weapons. 

 

Question 3: 
To ask the PCC what discussions he has held with the Chief Constable as to 

the operational resources deployed by Kent Police to tackle speed 

enforcement within the Borough of Tonbridge and Malling, and if he is satisfied 

that sufficient focus is being given to ongoing concerns raised by local 

communities about the environmental dangers posed by speeding motorists? 

(Cllr Mark Rhodes, Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council) 

 

The Commissioner recognised the issue of speed enforcement. He confirmed 

that he had met with the Tonbridge and Malling Community Safety Unit and 

that speed enforcement checks had been conducted in the borough. 

Reassurance was given that road safety remained a key priority. It was noted 

that an increase in the level of enforcement should not be expected with 

Page 40



 

20mph zones. The Commissioner committed to meet with the KCC Cabinet 

Member for Highways and Transport to discuss the issue further. 

 

Question 4: 
Can the PCC explain what powers PCSOs have in Kent and how is the PCC 

holding the Chief Constable to account in relation to extra powers the PCSOs 

can be provided with? Many of the complaints residents have the first person 

on scene is a PCSO who has very limited powers however under certain Acts 

a Chief Constable can provide additional training and invest additional powers 

onto PCSOs, this doesn’t seem to be the case in Kent and can the PCC 

explain how he is holding the Chief Constable to account on this and why 

people in Kent have PCSOs which do not have the full powers available to 

them?  

(Cllr Richard Palmer, Swale Borough Council) 

 

The Commissioner provided the Panel with a list of PCSO powers and 

distinguished national and local powers. He noted that whilst some powers 

were at the discretion of the Chief Constable, the majority of permitted powers 

had been given to PCSOs in Kent. It was stressed that the power to detain 

and search was not possessed by PCSOs. 

 

Question 5: 
Could the PCC’s office consider releasing some of the tactical pot funds that 

are part of the Crime Reduction grant for early release if an urgent project 

arises? 

(Cllr Jenny Hollingsbee, Folkestone and Hythe District Council) 

 

The Commissioner agreed to consider the Panel Member’s request. He 

reminded members of the tactical pot’s scope and Community Safety 

Partnership funding. 

RESOLVED that the answers provided by the Commissioner be noted. 
 
13. Minutes of the Commissioner's Governance Board meeting held on 10 
March 2021  
(Item F1) 
 

1. The Commissioner mentioned that the Performance and Delivery Board next 

met on Wednesday 30 June 2021 and that the meeting would be held virtually 

and was accessible to the public via www.kent-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-

do/holding-kent-police-to-account/performance-and-delivery-board/.  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Performance and Delivery Board held on 10 
March 2021 be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

http://www.kent-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/holding-kent-police-to-account/performance-and-delivery-board/
http://www.kent-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/holding-kent-police-to-account/performance-and-delivery-board/


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Activity of the Gravesham Vulnerability Panel (GVP) (Community Safety Partnership Sub-Group)
	2. Appendix 2 GVP Draft TOR Amended Sept 2021
	3. Appendix 2a Control-strategy-2020-2021
	4. Appendix 3 GVP Referral Form

	8 Topic Review Update
	2. Terms of Reference - CD Sub - Knife Violent Youth Crime
	3. Terms of Reference - CD Sub - Town Centre Crime

	9 Minutes of the latest publication of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel

